

obtained by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on (202) 205-1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On October 19, 2022, the Commission instituted this investigation under section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337 ("section 337"), based on a complaint filed by Daedalus Prime LLC ("Daedalus") of Bronxville, New York. *See* 87 FR 63528-29 (Oct. 19, 2022). The complaint alleges a violation of section 337 based upon the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, and the sale within the United States after importation of certain integrated circuits, mobile devices containing the same, and components thereof by reason of infringement of certain claims of U.S. Patent Nos. 8,775,833 ("the '833 patent"); 8,898,494 ("the '494 patent"); 10,049,080 ("the '080 patent"); and 10,705,588 ("the '588 patent"). *See id.* The notice of investigation names the following respondents: Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. of Suwon-si, Republic of Korea and Samsung Electronics America, Inc. of Ridgefield Park, New Jersey (collectively, "Samsung") and Qualcomm Inc. ("Qualcomm") of San Diego, California. *See id.* The Office of Unfair Import Investigations ("OUII") is also a party to the investigation. *See id.*

On July 19, 2023, the Commission terminated the investigation as to Samsung based on settlement. *See* Order No. 39 (June 21, 2023), *unreviewed by* Comm'n Notice (July 19, 2023).

The Commission also terminated the investigation as to claims 6-19 of the '588 patent and all asserted claims of the '494, '833, and '080 patents, based on the withdrawal of the allegations in the complaint as to those claims. *See* Order No. 31 (May 18, 2023), *unreviewed by* Comm'n Notice (June 12, 2023); Order No. 32 (May 18, 2023), *unreviewed by* Comm'n Notice (June 12, 2023); Order No. 42 (June 30, 2023), *unreviewed by* Comm'n Notice (July 28, 2023); Order No. 49 (Aug. 1, 2023), *unreviewed by* Comm'n Notice (Aug. 28, 2023); Order No. 59 (Aug. 14, 2023), *unreviewed by* Comm'n Notice (Sept. 11, 2023).

On February 29, 2024, complainant Daedalus and respondent Qualcomm (collectively, "the Private Parties") filed a joint motion to terminate the investigation in its entirety based on settlement. On March 11, 2024, OUII filed a response supporting the joint motion to terminate.

On March 12, 2024, the ALJ issued the subject ID (Order No. 84) granting the joint motion to terminate the

investigation based on settlement. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.21(b) (19 CFR 210.21(b)), the ID notes that the Private Parties included public and confidential versions of the settlement agreement between them. *See* ID at 3. The ID also notes that "the Private Parties represent that there are no other agreements, written or oral, express or implied, between them concerning the subject matter of this Investigation." *Id.* The ID further notes that "in the absence of extraordinary circumstances, termination of an investigation will be readily granted to a complainant during the prehearing stage of an investigation." *Id.* at 2.

No petition for review of the subject ID was filed. The Commission has determined not to review the subject ID. The investigation is terminated.

The Commission's vote for this determination took place on April 11, 2024.

The authority for the Commission's determination is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in part 210 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part 210).

By order of the Commission.

Issued: April 11, 2024.

Lisa Barton,

Secretary to the Commission.

[FR Doc. 2024-08025 Filed 4-15-24; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Investigation No. 337-TA-1397]

Certain Cellular Base Station Communication Equipment, Components Thereof, and Products Containing Same; Notice of Institution of Investigation

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade Commission

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a complaint was filed with the U.S. International Trade Commission on March 11, 2024, under section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, on behalf of Motorola Mobility LLC of Chicago, Illinois. A supplement was filed on March 19, 2024. The complaint, as supplemented, alleges violations of section 337 based upon the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, and the sale within the United States after importation of certain cellular base station communication equipment, components

thereof, and products containing same by reason of the infringement of certain claims of U.S. Patent No. 11,076,304 ("the '304 patent") and U.S. Patent No. 11,711,706 ("the '706 patent"). The complaint further alleges that an industry in the United States exists as required by the applicable Federal Statute.

The complainant requests that the Commission institute an investigation and, after the investigation, issue a limited exclusion order and cease and desist orders.

ADDRESSES: The complaint, except for any confidential information contained therein, may be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at <https://edis.usitc.gov>. For help accessing EDIS, please email EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. Hearing impaired individuals are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on (202) 205-1810. Persons with mobility impairments who will need special assistance in gaining access to the Commission should contact the Office of the Secretary at (202) 205-2000. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server at <https://www.usitc.gov>.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Pathenia M. Proctor, The Office of Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. International Trade Commission, telephone (202) 205-2560.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Authority: The authority for institution of this investigation is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, and in section 210.10 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 (2024).

Scope of Investigation: Having considered the complaint, the U.S. International Trade Commission, on April 10, 2024, *Ordered That*—

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, an investigation be instituted to determine whether there is a violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of section 337 in the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, or the sale within the United States after importation of certain products identified in paragraph (2) by reason of infringement of one or more of claims 10-18 of the '304 patent and claims 15-20 of the '706 patent, and whether an industry in the United States exists as required by subsection (a)(2) of section 337;

(2) Pursuant to section 210.10(b)(1) of the Commission's Rules of Practice and

Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10(b)(1), the plain language description of the accused products or category of accused products, which defines the scope of the investigation, is “cellular base station communication equipment, specifically 5G NR radio units and baseband units, components thereof, and products containing same”;

(3) Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.50(b)(1), 19 CFR 210.50(b)(1), the presiding administrative law judge shall take evidence or other information and hear arguments from the parties or other interested persons with respect to the public interest in this investigation, as appropriate, and provide the Commission with findings of fact and a recommended determination on this issue, which shall be limited to the statutory public interest factors set forth in 19 U.S.C. 1337(d)(1), (f)(1), (g)(1);

(4) For the purpose of the investigation so instituted, the following are hereby named as parties upon which this notice of investigation shall be served:

(a) The complainant is: Motorola Mobility LLC, 222 W. Merchandise Mart Plaza, Suite 1800, Chicago, Illinois 60654.

(b) The respondents are the following entities alleged to be in violation of section 337, and are the parties upon which the complaint is to be served: Ericsson AB, Torshamnsgatan 23, Kista, 16480 Stockholm, Sweden; Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson, Torshamnsgatan 21, Kista, SE-164 83, Stockholm, Sweden; Ericsson Inc., 6300 Legacy Drive, Plano, TX 75024.

(c) The Office of Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, Suite 401, Washington, DC 20436; and

(5) For the investigation so instituted, the Chief Administrative Law Judge, U.S. International Trade Commission, shall designate the presiding Administrative Law Judge.

Responses to the complaint and the notice of investigation must be submitted by the named respondents in accordance with section 210.13 of the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to 19 CFR 201.16(e) and 210.13(a), as amended in 85 FR 15798 (March 19, 2020), such responses will be considered by the Commission if received not later than 20 days after the date of service by the complainant of the complaint and the notice of investigation. Extensions of time for submitting responses to the complaint and the notice of investigation will not be granted unless good cause therefor is shown.

Failure of a respondent to file a timely response to each allegation in the complaint and in this notice may be deemed to constitute a waiver of the right to appear and contest the allegations of the complaint and this notice, and to authorize the administrative law judge and the Commission, without further notice to the respondent, to find the facts to be as alleged in the complaint and this notice and to enter an initial determination and a final determination containing such findings, and may result in the issuance of an exclusion order or a cease and desist order or both directed against the respondent.

By order of the Commission.

Issued: April 10, 2024.

Lisa Barton,

Secretary to the Commission.

[FR Doc. 2024-07991 Filed 4-15-24; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Investigation No. 332-600]

USMCA Automotive Rules of Origin: Economic Impact and Operation, 2025 Report

AGENCY: United States International Trade Commission.

ACTION: Scheduling of a public hearing.

SUMMARY: The U.S. International Trade Commission (Commission) has scheduled a public hearing for Investigation No. 332-600, *USMCA Automotive Rules of Origin: Economic Impact and Operations, 2025 Report*, for October 8, 2024.

DATES:

September 24, 2024: Deadline for filing requests to appear at the public hearing.

September 26, 2024: Deadline for filing prehearing briefs and statements.

October 1, 2024: Deadline for filing electronic copies of oral hearing statements (testimony).

October 8, 2024: Public hearing.

October 16, 2024: Deadline for filing posthearing briefs.

November 18, 2024: Deadline for filing all other written submissions.

July 1, 2025: Transmittal of Commission report to the President, the House Committee on Ways and Means, and the Senate Committee on Finance.

ADDRESSES: All Commission offices, including the Commission’s hearing rooms, are located in the U.S. International Trade Commission Building, 500 E Street SW, Washington, DC. All written submissions should be

addressed to the Secretary, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, Washington, DC 20436. The public record for this investigation may be viewed on the Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS) at <https://edis.usitc.gov>.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Project Leader Mitch Semanik (202-205-2034 or mitchell.semanik@usitc.gov), or Deputy Project Leaders Nathan Lotze (202-205-3231 or nathan.lotze@usitc.gov) or 202-205-3231) and Aaron Woodward (202-205-2663 or aaron.woodward@usitc.gov) for information specific to these investigations. For information on the legal aspects of this investigation, contact Brian Allen (202-205-3034 or brian.allen@usitc.gov) or William Gearhart (202-205-3091 or william.gearhart@usitc.gov) of the Commission’s Office of the General Counsel. The media should contact Jennifer Andberg, Office of External Relations (202-205-3404 or jennifer.andberg@usitc.gov). Hearing-impaired individuals are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission’s TDD terminal at 202-205-1810. General information concerning the Commission may be obtained by accessing its internet address (<https://www.usitc.gov>). Persons with mobility impairments who will need special assistance in gaining access to the Commission should contact the Office of the Secretary at 202-205-2000.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Background: The 2025 report will be the second of five reports that section 202A(g)(2) of the United States-Mexico-Canada Agreement Implementation Act (19 U.S.C. 4532(g)(2)) (“USMCA Implementation Act”) requires that the Commission provide on the USMCA automotive rules of origin (ROOs) and their impact on the U.S. economy, effect on U.S. competitiveness, and relevancy considering recent technology changes. In particular, the USMCA Implementation Act requires that the Commission report on the following:

(1) The economic impact of the USMCA automotive ROOs on U.S. gross domestic product; U.S. exports and imports; U.S. aggregate employment and employment opportunities; production, investment, use of productive facilities, and profit levels in the U.S. automotive industries and other pertinent industries; wages and employment of workers in the U.S. automotive sector; and the interests of U.S. consumers.

(2) The operation of the ROOs and their effects on the competitiveness of the United States with respect to